ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 18, 2009
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Munoz, Vice Chair
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon

Representative Wes Kel |l er

Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Peggy W son
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NE S)

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Commi ssion

Cindy Lou Aillaud, Delta Junction

Jill M Exe, Kaktovik

Linda Lee G |l am Bl ack, Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

St ate Board of Education

Janel Keplinger, Kodiak
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
Linda Lee G Il am Bl ack, Anchorage
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

DI SCUSSI ON: THE GALENA CITY SCHOOL DI STRICT'S EARLY LEARN NG
CENTER — SI DNEY C. HUNTI NGTON SCHOCL

- HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 58

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 18, 2009



"An Act relating to a student |oan repaynent program for
speci fied occupations or fields in which a shortage of qualified
enpl oyees exists.”

- BI LL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

Cl NDY LQU Al LLAUD, Appoi ntee

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices Comm ssion

Del ta Junction, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as the appointee to the
Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices Comm ssion.

JILL M EXE, Appointee

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices Comm ssion

Kakt ovi k, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as the appointee to the
Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conmm ssi on.

JANEL KEPLI NGER, Appoi nt ee

St ate Board of Educati on

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the State
Board of Educati on.

CHRI S REI TAN, Princi pal

Si dney C. Huntington School

Gal ena, Al aska;

Pr esi dent - El ect

Al aska Associ ation of Secondary School Principals

Gal ena, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the Sidney C
Hunti ngt on School and responded to questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:02: 21 AM

CHAI R PAUL SEATON cal l ed the House Education Standing Conmmittee
neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Representati ves Seaton, Buch,

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 18, 2009



Gardner, Minoz, and Keller were present at the call to order.
Representative Edgnon arrived as the neeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG S)
Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conm ssion

8:02: 49 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business would be
confirmation hearings for the Professional Teaching Practices
Conmi ssi on.

The conmmttee took an at-ease from8:03 a.m to 8:05 a.m

8:05:42 AM

CINDY LOU AILLAUD, Appointee, Professional Teaching Practices
Commission, related that she has found her wirk wth the

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices Conmm ssi on (PTPC) very
rewardi ng. She opined that she is a good representative for the
teachers in the state of Al aska. Ms. Aillaud characterized

herself as a very fair, honest, and trustworthy advocate for
teachers and students in this state.

8:07: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER began by thanking Ms. Aillaud for her
wi | lingness to continue serving on the PTPC. She then inquired
as to whether Ms. Aillaud saw any area in which the interests of
students and teachers aren’t fully aligned.

MS. AlILLAUD answered that the interests of students and teachers
aren’t always fully aligned. Therefore, one purpose of PTPC is
to be careful that the teachers in the state hold the students’
interests as the nunber one priority.

8:08:11 AM
CHAI R SEATON inquired as to whether the PTPC deals with the No
Child Left Behind (NCLB) requirenents and other testing

mandat es.

M5. AILLAUD replied yes, adding that there are clear rules for

adm ni stering tests. Wen the rules for the tests aren't
followed, the PTPC is alerted so that it can address the
si tuation. She highlighted the inportance of protecting the

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 18, 2009



students. She then noted that problenms have arisen with various
tests, particularly with the NCLB tests.

8:10: 33 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if the PTPC addresses criticisns and concerns
regarding how information from the annual standards testing is
used by the profession in terns of teaching practices.

M5. AILLAUD related that the PTPC works wth districts and
superintendents to assure that the -ethics of teaching 1is
fol | oned. “And testing, of course, is one of our big issues,”
she remarked. She suggested that at sone point nore specific
| anguage may need to be adopted into the [teachers’] noral code
of ethics.

CHAI R SEATON commented that he would appreciate review of the
possibility of nore individualized student information to
utilize in considering effective teaching nethods.

M5. AILLAUD interjected that she will do so.
8:12: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER inquired as to the reach of PTPC s
jurisdiction. He recalled that in the past, teachers were
expected to have the values of the cormunity and | ocal area. He
asked if the PTPC has to deal wth situations in which a teacher
doesn’t share the values and beliefs of the community.

M5. Al LLAUD pointed out that every case is unique, and therefore
all evidence nust be considered in order to make a well-inforned
deci si on. She then highlighted that every teacher receives a
nmoral code of ethics, which encourages all teachers to follow a
prof essional standard to deliver education because the priority
is to assist students in learning and becom ng productive
menbers of society. Although the hope is that every teacher has
that as a goal, sone teachers differ, she remarked.

8:14:52 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER inquired as to whether a teacher who
breaks the noral code of ethics outside of the classroom would
be handl ed.

M5. AlILLAUD explained that first such a case would be reviewed
by the conmm ssioner to determ ne whether a case exists for PTPC

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 18, 2009



The commttee can then decide whether the conmm ssioner’s
decision is appropriate or whether steps to a hearing need to be
t aken.

8:17:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER pointed out that the nomnee has a
speci al education endorsenent, but is currently teaching
physi cal educati on. Therefore, she asked if Ms. Aillaud is a
teacher who has “taken off the [special education] endorsenent
from your teaching certificate.” She further asked if M.

Aillaud has any suggestions for state policies that would
encourage teachers to attain a special education endorsenent.

M5. AILLAUD specified that she has the following three
endorsements on her certificate: elenentary education, physical
education, and special education. She explained that she has
recently retired from her physical education position and has
been traveling throughout the U S to present author visits
regarding her book Recess at 20 Bel ow However, her [ ocal
school district called her in February because the high school
speci al education teacher resigned. Therefore, she is currently
holding a high school special education position for the
remai nder of the year. Ms. Aillaud opined that talking wth
teachers throughout the state has been a great opportunity to
di scuss issues inpacting various schools and the state, which
she has been able to bring to PTPC. Wth regard to suggestions
to encourage teachers to enter the special education profession,
Ms. Aillaud pointed out that it’'s a national problem with no
easy sol ution.

8:20: 36 AM

REPRESENTATIVE MUNOZ inquired as to how the PTPC deals wth
targeted canpaigns to discredit a teacher and if so, is it
sonmet hing that occurs often

M5. AILLAUD said that such situations have certainly been
brought before the PTPC, but she said she wouldn’t characterize
it as sonething that occurs often. She reiterated that every
case is unique and the facts of each case nust be reviewed.
Al though a hearing affords each side to present their case, it’'s
unfortunate for an educator to have to be put through this type
of stress.

8:24:14 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 18, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE MUNCZ noved to advance the confirmation of G ndy
Lou Aillaud to the joint session of the House and the Senate for
confirmation to the Professional Teaching Practices Comm ssion.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

8:26: 01 AM

JiILL M EXE, Appoi nt ee, Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, said that she is eager to participate in the PTPC as
it’s a continuation of her current position at the district
| evel as a grievance chair person. The conbined efforts of the
PTPC and the conmittee’s interest in inproving education in
Al aska are inportant. 1In response to Representative Keller, M.
Exe relayed that although this is her first year teacher in
Kakt ovi k, she has worked in the North Sl ope Borough D strict for
16 years. She further relayed that she noved from Barrow to
Kakt ovi k.

8:29: 30 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that Ms. Exe has an English as a
Second Language (ESL) endorsenent, and then asked whether she

has cause to use such an endorsenent in Al aska.

M5. EXE explained that the district in which Kaktovik is
situated has a nunber of English Language Learners (ELL) because

the Native |anguage is spoken in the hone. In fact, there are
seven students in Kaktovik that wll be receiving additional
support and there is an ELL coordinator. |In further response to

Representative Gardner, M. Exe said that she has heard of the
Parents as Teachers program but doesn’t have any experience
withit.

8:30: 54 AM

CHAIR SEATON restated his previous question regarding testing
and teachers using individual testing scores to better educate
st udent s.

M5. EXE opined that the comng together of nine teachers from
across the state to discuss education in general could foster
prof essional developnent in the districts in which they work.
However, she wasn’'t sure if the actual advocacy on the PTPC fits
into the equation. Still, teachers, as professional educators,
can advocate what they know needs to occur.

8:33:42 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 18, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER nopved to advance the nane of Jill Exe to
the joint session of the House and the Senate for confirmation
to the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion. There being
no objection, it was so ordered.

State Board OF Educati on

CHAIR SEATON then turned the conmttee’'s attention to the
confirmation hearing for the State Board of Educati on.

8:34: 58 AM

JANEL KEPLI NGER, Appointee, State Board of Education, began by
relating that she has had a passion for education since high

school . She further related that she has been in the field of
education for 27 years and has served on many commttees within
the school district and her school. Ms. Keplinger stated her

interest in broader service to the state in the field of
educati on.

8:35:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER inquired as to Ms. Keplinger’' s perspective
on school choice and how it relates to what is available in the
st ate.

M5. KEPLINGER opined that it's inmportant for parents to have a
choice, but it is also inperative that they be informed in that
choi ce beyond hearsay.

8:37:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER pointed out that M. Keplinger has a
Master’s of Art in special education, and asked her to address
the need for special education teachers in this state.

V. KEPLI NGER characteri zed [filling] speci al educat i on
[ positions] as a trenendous chall enge. She indicated the need
to get university students involved with special education early
on to stinmulate an interest and encourage themto participate in
speci al education classroons. She even suggested encouraging
interest in special education in high school. It’s inportant,
she opined, for young people to see that needs of special
education students aren’'t that different than those of any child
in the state’s educational system

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 18, 2009



8:40: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH inquired as to how the Parents as Teachers
programis utilized in Kodiak.

M5. KEPLINGER said she isn't famliar wth the aforenentioned
program in terns of how it’s utilized in Kodiak, but noted that
she has read about it. She related excitenent with regard to
the philosophy of the Parents as Teachers program and added
that early education nakes a difference for students |long-term
Furthernore, the program creates a partnership [between the
parents and the teachers/school] and causes the parent to
realize the inportance of education. She surmsed that this
program would be inportant in rural areas. Fur t her nor e,
parental involvenent, she opined, is one of the key indicators
of a student’s success in school.

8:42: 50 AM

M5. KEPLINGER, in further response to Representative Buch,
related that the Kodiak community is very involved in its
schools and the schools nmake nuch effort to engage parents.
However, as parents it can be intimdating to enter the school
Ms. Keplinger further related that Kodiak schools hold famly
nights for reading and math in which the students bring the
parents. She also highlighted the wuse of student-I|ed
conferences that help parents relax and see the inportance of
[i nvol venent ] .

8:44: 42 AM

REPRESENTATIVE BUCH inquired as to how nmany students speak
English as a second | anguage. In the Anchorage School District,
he recalled, 93 different |anguages are spoken.

M5. KEPLINGER estimated that perhaps 50-60 percent of Kodiak’s
students are English Language Learners. She noted, however,
t hat Kodi ak has a di verse popul ati on.

8:45:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER inquired as to how M. Keplinger would
address the high drop-out rate, were funds of no concern.

M5. KEPLI NGER responded that she would spend a lot of time with

kids, parents, and teachers. She recalled her own three
children’s time in high school, which she characterized as a

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 18, 2009



very different experience for each. Therefore, direct contact
with the students is inperative in order to assess the
effectiveness and appropriateness of each student’s education

because traditional education settings don’t neet every
student’ s needs. Every student requires support in different
ways, she renarked. She recomended the wuse of vocational

education for those students who aren’'t finding success in the
tradi tional high school setting.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said that he was inpressed wth M.
Keplinger’s answer as it dovetails with what sone alternative
school students related at an earlier hearing on this topic.

8:48: 38 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that the commttee has had di scussions about
making the high school diplonma/graduation certificate nore
rel evant. He noted the problem of the high school diplona
nmerely reflecting seat tinme and mninum conpetency. The
commttee has discussed utilizing an assessnment of achievenent.
At this point, the conmittee is reviewing the WrkKeys system
He inquired as to M. Keplinger’'s thoughts about graduating
students havi ng an achi evenent assessnment on their diplona

M5. KEPLI NGER said that she has reviewed the concerns in this

ar ea. The WbrkKeys appears to be a neaningful program
particularly for the students who aren’t having success in a
traditional setting. Furthernore, WrkKeys also assists the

enployer in the hiring process. A portfolio, versus a diplona
woul d be nore neaningful for students as they enter college or
the work force. She characterized WrkKeys as a great idea that
woul d notivate kids.

8:52: 25 AM

CHAIR SEATON then turned to the H gh School Qualifying Exam
(HSQE) and related that the conmittee has been reviewing how to
make it neaningful. Thus far the idea is for the district to
provide tuition for vocational education and/or distance courses
at education facilities throughout the nation upon passage of
all three sections of the HSQE. The HSQE, he related, is a
requi renent for graduation, but doesn’'t mean that a student who
passes the HSQE is proficient in all the areas a high school
student shoul d be.

M5. KEPLI NGER remarked that at one point the HSQE was needed for
accountability. “ Assessnent is inportant,” she opi ned.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -9- March 18, 2009



However, there are different levels of assessment. Ms.
Keplinger said that it may be difficult to use the HSQE to drive
i nstruction. Still, the HSQE has created opportunities for
teachers to have particular discussions. She noted her
agreenment that passage of the HSQE has been represented,
especially in the student body, as being done with high school

The aforenentioned needs to be changed, she opined. The
Wor kKeys program i ncl udes an assessnent piece for sixth, eighth,
and el eventh grade students. To fit another assessnent into the
schedule will be challenging, she pointed out. She questi oned
how that wll drive every day instruction. She relayed that
several educators who have taken the WrkKeys test have
suggested using the assessnent portion  of WrkKeys in
conjunction with the HSQE or possibly nelding the two. The
af orenentioned would be nmch nore effective, she opined,
especially since the WrkKeys test provides inmediate feedback

In further response to Chair Seaton, M. Keplinger related her
belief that allowing dual credits for vocational or college
cl asses for those students who pass the HSQE woul d be effective.

8:58: 55 AM
REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON recalled testinmony from the Avant-Grde

Learning Foundation which is conducting an alignnment study to
help create a dialogue between educators, citizens, and policy

makers. The organi zation, he related, is interested in data-
driven discussions that nove beyond educational decisions not
based in fact. He asked if a gap exists such that a non-

governmental entity needs to cone forward to [determine how to
better serve the educational needs of the state.

M5. KEPLINGER related her hope that a separate entity wouldn’'t
be required to stinulate this cooperation and discussion
regarding education in the state. She expressed the need for
| egislators and teachers to cone together to have discussions
regardi ng educational concerns. M. Keplinger opined that there
can be a lot of data that an outside agency could organize for

better wunderstanding. She said she is not famliar with the
conpany, but assuned it would explain the data and ways in which
it could better be used. She expressed hope that [Alaska’s

education comunity] would cone together to discuss issues as
such would be a nore valuable discussion than having another
entity do so.

9:04: 29 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 10- March 18, 2009



CHAI R SEATON highlighted that Alaska has one of the highest
drop-out rates in the nation, and therefore it’s inportant to
address the facts and not dimnish the need.

9:05: 20 AM

REPRESENTATIVE BUCH asked if M. Keplinger’'s children had
chal I enges in school .

M5. KEPLINGER rel ated that her two boys and one girl had extrene
difficulty learning to read. Dysl exia has played a mgjor role
and as a parent it is a difficult realm to work wthin. She
described how one of her children learned how to hide his
difficulty, but through the help of teachers and the vocationa

options was successful. She indicated that her experiences with
her children will help her in her position on the State Board of
Educat i on.
9:08: 38 AM

M5. KEPLINGER, in further response to Representative Buch,
opined that in elementary school nuch tine is spent determning
what type of learner the student is and relaying to the students
that not every student is the sane. Doi ng the aforenentioned
provides students wth the ability to appreciate their own
strengths and weaknesses as well as to be nobre enpathetic to
ot her students. The aforenentioned is carried through to mddle
school, where professionals speak to the students about careers,

and provide shadow ng opportunities. Ms. Keplinger indicated
t hat Kodiak seens to be turning back to vocational
opportunities. She then related how the program Comrunity

Experi ence Career Education helped her realize she wanted to be
an educator.

9:12:35 AM

CHAIR SEATON recalled previous testinony that Alaska Native
children enter school with visual and auditory |earning skil

sets. If the schools don't build on those skill sets, then
Al aska Native students are alienated and may contribute to the
hi gh Al aska Native drop-out rate. Chair Seaton characterized
the aforenentioned as very neaningful. He asked Ms. Keplinger
would view that as reality and that the schools need to do a
better job working with the skill sets Al aska Native students
have.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 18, 2009



M5. KEPLINGER remarked that [accommpdating various |earning
skill sets] for all children is inportant, but particularly for
Al aska Native children. The classroom situation may be easier
in a small village in which all the students are Al aska Native.
However, nost classroons are very diverse in ternms of the skil
sets of the students as well as the cultural sets. Awareness is
the first step, and each teacher can learn how to honor every
st udent . She nentioned the need for teachers to work in
experiences for students that are outside of the classroom
whi ch provide students with a different environnent in which
they may "shine."

CHAI R SEATON related the commttee’'s concern with the fact that
there is a higher drop-out rate of Alaska Native students as

conpared to the rest of the student popul ation. The
aforenmenti oned, he opined, hasn't been taken into account on a
statew de basis. He further opined that new teachers in the
Bush don’t have any idea of the skill sets students bring to the
cl assroom
9:18: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if M. Keplinger would suggest
anything at the state |l evel that would hel p Dysl exic students.

VB. KEPLI NGER opined that reading teachers have nade a
tremendous difference. She highlighted that each student is an
i ndi vidual and his/her needs should be reviewed. Furt her nore,
wor ki ng as col |l aborative teans [with a reading teacher] provides
[teachers] the ability to know [the learning level] of the
students and his/her progress. Such teaching also allows the
[reading teacher] to relate the strategies that would benefit a
particul ar student. Being able to have [Dyslexic students] in
smal | groups makes a trenendous difference, she stated.
Moreover, wearly intervention is the key in helping address
i ssues such as Dysl exi a.

9:23:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH rem nded everyone that there’'s a cost for
every kind of intervention. The state has limted resources,
and therefore it wll take help from fol ks such as M. Keplinger
to nake intervention choices. Also, vocational education nay be
the only way to reach sonme students not to nention that three-
quarters of [Alaskan] students hold jobs that don’t require a
col | ege educati on. Therefore, he encouraged M. Keplinger to
keep the aforenentioned in m nd.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -12- March 18, 2009



9:25:01 AM

CHAI R SEATON reiterated his understanding that many districts
and teachers in the state aren't fully utilizing data the annual
assessnents generate. He expressed the need for the State Board
of Education to review ways in which to fully utilize assessnent
scores to identify student [education] |evels.

9:26: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the nane of Janel
Keplinger to the joint session of the House and the Senate for
confirmation to the Professional Teaching Practices Comm ssion.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

9:27:42 AM

CHAIR SEATON noted that there wll be a subconmttee neeting
Friday at 7:30 a.m wth the State Board of Educati on. He then
noted that consideration of the appointnment of Linda Lee G Ilam
Bl ack to the State Board of Education would be held over.

DI SCUSSI ON: THE GALENA G TY SCHOOL DI STRICT'S EARLY LEARN NG
CENTER — SI DNEY C. HUNTI NGTON SCHOCL

9:28:47 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business would be
a discussion of the Sidney C  Huntington School Galena Gty
School District’s Early Learning Center.

9:29:17 AM

CHRIS REITAN, Principal, Sidney C. Huntington School, Galena,
Al aska; President-Elect, Al aska Association of Secondary School

Principals, inforned the commttee that four years ago the
Galena City School District wote a Native education grant that
was nodeled after the Hoonah program In Galena there’s an
early learning center that is a childcare and preschool facility
that also houses the Parents as Teachers program The four
years under this program has produced huge differences in regard
to literacy developnent, parenting skills, and confort of
parents working with the school system The effort is being
tracked through +the Kindergarten profile as well as in

conjunction with the Terra Nova test data. He noted that other
schools use the Terra Nova test in grades 5 and 6, but Gal ena

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 13- March 18, 2009



has chosen to test the early grades in an effort to obtain
anot her indicator. He related that Galena City School students
are scoring above the national average, across the board, in
first and second grades.

MR. REITAN opined that he didn't see how the state can nove
forward without nore efforts in the early learning area. He
noted that Galena has attenpted to have a conprehensive approach
for Galena children from the tine they are born while taking
into consideration the entire spectrum of vocational prograns in
Gal ena. He characterized [the Parents as Teachers progran] as a
m ssi ng component. He indicated that the conmmttee should
review the research on the Parents as Teachers program from the
University of Washington. The key for Galena is to hire the
appropriate person to work with the famlies in the hone.
Sonetines helping famlies is as easy as distributing books
while for others it’s relating devel opnentally appropriate ganes
for the child in order to engender success for children. M.
Reitan related that there’s a stark difference, in ternms of
school ready skills, between students who have experienced early
learning or a Parents as Teachers program and those who have
not .

9:33:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER inquired as to who was the grantee for
Gal ena’ s grant.

MR. REITAN answered that Galena received a Native education
grant from the U S. Departnent of Education. In further
response to Representative Keller, M. Reitan specified that the
grant was for three years, but Galena was able to extend it for
a fourth year. Just recently, Galena Cty School District has
submtted a renewal for the grant because w thout those funds,
there would be no program M. Reitan said that he couldn’t
speak to whether the U S. Departnent of Education has an ongoing
interest in supporting the Parents as Teachers program
However, he did relay his belief that the U S. Departnent of
Educati on does have an interest in research-based prograns that
have proven they work.

9:35: 36 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if Galena wll produce a fornal

wite up regarding the results of the Parents as Teachers
programin the Galena Cty School District.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -14- March 18, 2009



MR. REITAN said such is done every year because in order to
access the funds, evidence of the status of neeting the

obj ectives has to be provided. He said that he has the |ast
three years’ worth of data that has been subnmitted to the U.'S
Department of Educati on. He explained that in Galena, Al aska
Native students are conpared to Caucasian students statew de.
In alnost every grade level, the discrepancy between Al aska
Native students in Galena [participating in the progran] and
Caucasi an students is elimnated. In fact, Galena s Al aska

Native students, as indicated by the Standards Based
Assessnents, rank at or above the state level as conpared to
Al aska’s Caucasi an students. The next step is how to continue
that trend as students progress through the grade |Ievels,
because nationally and statewide there is a bit of a decline at

the junior high school and high school |[evels. He noted
di scussions he has had with Representative Buch regarding the
need for vocational education as well as lots of other

opportunities for students.
9:39: 30 AM

CHAIR SEATON inquired as to the percentage of parents who
participate in the Parents as Teachers program

MR. REITAN answered that about 75 percent of parents, wth
chil dren through age five participate.

9: 39: 56 AM

CHAI R SEATON recal |l ed that Hoonah reported that about 80 percent
of parents participate in the program Furt hernore, Hoonah
reports that alnost all the students who are successful in

school participated in the program Chair Seaton requested that
M. Reitan provide the commttee wth the four years of data
that Galena has collected. Chair Seaton then announced that the
conm ssioner wll speak to the commttee regarding the early
education prograns, including the Parents as Teachers program

MR. REI TAN agreed to provide the information.

9:42: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON rel ated his observation that it has becone
clear that the closest thing to a silver bullet for education is

to focus on early education.

9:43: 32 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -15- March 18, 2009



MR. REITAN interjected that all of the current research also
points to focusing on the early chil dhood experience versus the

drop-out age student. However, he acknow edged that focusing on
early education won't elimnate all of the problens in secondary
educati on. “I believe with a conservative, deliberate and
sustainable effort, it’Il mnimze a lot of them and we’'ll be

seeing sone huge differences in regards to just what our schools
| ook like, K-12, and the school system” he said. He appl auded
the commttee for its efforts with education.

9:44: 42 AM

CHAIR SEATON related that early education can ensure that
children have skill sets that wll enable them However,
wi thout altering how classroons operate, the early education
strides won't make the difference that’s necessary. Chair
Seaton opined that it’s inperative to focus on what an

i ndi vi dual student is good at doing rather than what he/she is
not doi ng.

9:46: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH characterized Galena as a mcrocosm of the
state, and indicated that the state may |ook to places I|ike
Galena for answers in the future. Representative Buch

recogni zed the presence of M. Perkins, the principal of the
| argest junior high school in the state, and invited him to
forward his information as well.

9:48: 51 AM

CHAIR SEATON noted that the invitation had been extended to
educators throughout the state.

9:48: 55 AM
ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Education Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:48 a.m

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 16- March 18, 2009



